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General

Ultimate holding company

The Company is a public company incorporated in Hong Kong and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The directors regard the ultimate holding company
as at 31 December 2005 to be China Resources National Corporation
(“CRNC"), a company established in the Chinese Mainland. The address
of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company
is disclosed in the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding, and the activities of its principal subsidiaries and
jointly controlled entitles and associates are shown on pages 169 to
180.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005 have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. Save as specified in the principal accounting
policies as set out in note 2, the financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange and by the Companies Ordinance.

Changes in Accounting Policies

In connection with the adoption of the new Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations (“INT"”) (collectively known as the “new
HKFRSs"”), issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2005, the Group has applied certain
new accounting policies in accordance with the transitional provisions
as set out in the relevant new HKFRSs. Where required, these new HKFRSs
have been applied retrospectively. In addition, certain comparative figures
have been reclassified to conform with the current period presentation.
The major changes to accounting policies and the effects on the Group’s
profit and loss account and shareholders’ equity are set out as follows:
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General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

Investment Properties

In previous years, investment properties were measured at open
market values, with revaluation surplus or deficits credited or
charged to property valuation reserve unless the balance on this
reserve was insufficient to cover a revaluation decrease, in which
case the excess of the revaluation decrease over the balance on
the property revaluation reserve was charged to the profit and
loss account. Where a decrease had previously been charged to
the profit and loss account and revaluation subsequently arose,
that increase was credited to the profit and loss account to the
extent of the decrease previously charged.

In accordance with HKAS 40 — “Investment Property”, the Group
has elected to use the fair value model to account for its investment
properties which requires gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value of investment properties to be recognised directly in the
profit and loss account for the year in which they arise. Accordingly,
an amount of approximately HK$489.2 million has been recognised
in other revenue in the current year.

The Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions in HKAS
40 and elected to apply the standard from 1 January 2005 onwards.
The amount of approximately HK$819.0 million held in the property
valuation reserve at 1 January 2005 has been transferred to the
Group’s retained profits. No adjustment has been made on 2004
comparative figures.

Deferred Taxation Related to Investment Properties

In previous years, deferred tax consequences in respect of revalued
investment properties were assessed on the basis of the tax
consequence that would follow from recovery of the carrying
amount of the properties through sale. Upon the adoption of HKAS
INT 21 “Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable
Assets”, the deferred tax consequences of the investment
properties are assessed on the basis that reflect the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects to recover the property at each balance sheet date.
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Deferred Taxation Related to Investment Properties (continued)

(c)

In the absence of any specific transitional provisions in HKAS INT
21, this change in accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively. As a result, the Group’s net assets as at 31
December 2004 had been decreased by approximately HK$705.1
million, which represent the increase in deferred taxation liabilities.
The deferred taxation directly charged to the profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 December 2005 has been increased by
approximately HK$85.7 million (2004:HKS$nil).

Goodwill

In previous periods, goodwill or negative goodwill arising on
acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001 was written off against/credited
to reserves and will be charged or released to the consolidated
profit and loss account at the time of disposal of the relevant
subsidiary or associate, or at such time as the goodwill is determined
to be impaired. Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1
January 2001 and prior to 1 January 2005 was capitalised and
amortised over its estimated useful life of not more than twenty
years and was stated in the consolidated balance sheet at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment loss while
negative goodwill arising from acquisitions in the same period was
presented as a deduction from assets and released to the
consolidated profit and loss account based on an analysis of the
circumstance from which the balance resulted.
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General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill (continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 3 — “Business Combinations”
prospectively from 1 January 2005. Goodwill arising from
acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005 is capitalised on the balance
sheet and will be assessed for impairment at the reporting date,
whereas negative goodwill arising from acquisitions on or after 1
January 2005 is credited to the consolidated profit and loss account.
No amortisation of goodwill has been made in the current year
while an amount of approximately HK$116.4 million has been
charged to the consolidated profit and loss account for the year
ended 31 December 2004. In accordance with the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 3, for goodwill arising from acquisitions prior
to 1 January 2005 and previously capitalised on the balance sheet,
the Group discontinues amortising such goodwill and eliminates
the carrying amount of the related accumulated amortisation with
a corresponding decrease in goodwill. Such goodwill will be
assessed for impairment at the reporting date. As for goodwill
previously recognised as a deduction from equity, such goodwill
should not be recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account
when the Group disposes of all or part of the business to which
that goodwill relates or when a cash-generating unit to which the
goodwill relates becomes impaired. Such deduction from capital
reserve amounting to HK$5,902.6 million was transferred to
retained profits as at 1 January 2005. The carrying amount of
negative goodwill that arose from acquisitions prior to 1 January
2005 should be derecognised with a corresponding increase in
retained profits as at 1 January 2005.

Share-based Payment

The Group has granted share options to certain employees for
their services rendered to subscribe for shares of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s share option scheme. Prior to the
application of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, the Group did
not recognise the financial effect of the share options until they
were exercised.
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

Share-based Payment (continued)

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 2 which requires
an expense to be recognised where the Group buys goods or
obtains services in exchange for shares or rights over shares
(“equity-settled transactions”). The principal impact of HKFRS 2
on the Group is in relation to the expensing of the fair value of
share options of the Company determined at the date of grant of
the share options over the vesting period.

The Group has applied HKFRS 2 to share options granted on or
after 1 January 2005. In accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions, the Group has applied HKFRS 2 retrospectively to share
options that were granted after 7 November 2002 and had not
yet vested on 1 January 2005. Comparative figures have been
restated.

This change has no effect on the Group’s net assets. An employee
share-based compensation reserve of HK$3.7 million was
recognised as at 1 January 2004. The effect of this change on the
profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2005 and
2004 is to increase the general and administrative expenses of
approximately HK$53.2 million and HK$88.3 million respectively
and a corresponding increase to employee share-based
compensation reserve.

As stated in Note 1C (d), the Company issued share options to
certain employees of the subsidiaries at no consideration, and has
accounted for it in accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions in HKFRS 2. The effect of this change has resulted to an
increase in investment in subsidiaries of HK$81.1 million at 1
January 2005 and HK$48.1 million at 31 December 2005,
respectively, with a corresponding increase to employee share-
based compensation reserve.
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General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(e)

()

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds were classified as liabilities on the balance sheet
previously. In accordance with HKAS 32 — “Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentation”, convertible bonds which are regarded
as compound financial instruments are required to separate the
liability and equity components on initial recognition and to account
for these components separately. In subsequent periods, the liability
component is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The adoption of this accounting standard requires
retrospective applications.

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 32, the Group’s net assets as
at 31 December 2004 and 2005 have been increased by
approximately HK$57.4 million and HK$18.2 million respectively.
A warrant reserve of HK$167.8 million was recognised as at 1
January 2004. The financial costs charged to the profit and loss
account for the year ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 have
been increased by approximately HK$39.2 million and HK$34.9
million respectively.

Financial assets and liabilities

The adoption of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” has resulted in a change in the accounting policy
relating to the classification of financial assets and liabilities and
their measurements.

Under the new accounting standards, financial assets are classified
as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”, “available-
for-sale financial assets”, “loans and receivables”, or “held-to-
maturity financial assets”. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the assets are acquired. “Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” are carried at fair value with changes
in fair values recognised directly in the profit and loss account.
“Loans and receivables” and “held-to-maturity financial assets”
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
after initial recognition. “Available-for-sale financial assets” are
carried at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in equity
except for investments in equity securities, that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be measured reliably and are stated at cost less impairment.
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(f)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as “financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss” or “financial liabilities other than financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (other financial
liabilities)”. “Other financial liabilities” are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method after initial recognition.

On 1 January 2005, the Group classified and measured its financial
assets and liabilities in accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions of HKAS 39. As the financial effect is not significant, no
adjustment has been made to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities and the Group’s retained profits as at 1 January 2005.

Prior to 1 January 2005, the Group's investments in debt and equity
securities which are held for an identified long term purpose are
measured at cost less any impairment loss that is other than
temporary. Other investments which are neither debt securities
held-to-maturity nor securities held for an identified long term
purpose are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
included in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Prior to the application of HKAS 39, an interest free non-current
loans to subsidiaries were stated at nominal amount. In accordance
with HKAS 39, such loans were measured at fair value on initial
recognition, and then as stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method at subsequent balance sheet dates. The Company
has applied HKAS 39 prospectively, and accordingly, HKAS 39 has
no effect on the carrying amounts of the interests in subsidiaries
and the Company’s retained profits as at 1 January 2005. Profit
for the year has been increased by HK$59.6 million for the imputed
interest expenses.
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General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

Derivatives and hedging

Under HKAS 39, derivatives are carried at fair value at each balance
sheet date and are deemed as held-for-trading financial assets or
financial liabilities, unless they are designated and qualified as
effective hedging instruments. The corresponding adjustments on
changes in fair values would depend on whether the derivatives
are qualified as effective hedging instruments, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged. For derivatives that are deemed as held
for trading, changes in fair values of such derivatives are dealt
with in the profit and loss account for the period in which they
arise.

With the adoption of HKAS 39, the Group designated certain
derivatives as effective cash flow hedge. The effective portion of
the loss on the hedge instrument of HK$26.9 million was
recognised directly in equity on 1 January 2005. For those
derivatives deemed as held for trading, these financial instruments
were fair-valued as at 1 January 2005 with an aggregate fair value
loss of HK$60.4 million charged directly to retained profits on that
date.

Changes in presentation (HKAS 1, Presentation of financial

statements)

(1) Presentation of shares of associates’ and jointly controlled

entities’ taxation (HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements)
In prior years, the Group’s share of taxation of associates
and jointly controlled entities accounted for using the equity
method was included as part of the Group’s income tax in
the consolidated profit and loss account. With effect from 1
January 2005, in accordance with the implementation
guidance in HKAS 1, the group has changed the presentation
and includes the share of taxation of associates and jointly
controlled entities accounted for using the equity method in
the respective shares of profit or loss reported in the
consolidated profit and loss account before arriving at the
Group's profit or loss before tax. These changes in
presentation have been applied retrospectively.
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

1.  General (continued)
C Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Changes in presentation (HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements) (continued)

(i)

)

Minority interests (HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements and HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate
financial statements)

In prior years, minority interests at the balance sheet date
were presented in the consolidated balance sheet separately
from liabilities and as deduction from net assets. Minority
interests in the results of the Group for the year were also
separately presented in the profit and loss account as a
deduction before arriving at the profit attributable to
shareholders (the equity shareholders of the Company).

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with
HKAS 1 and HKAS 27, the Group has changed its accounting
policy relating to presentation of minority interests. Under
the new policy, minority interests are presented as part of
equity, separately from interests attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. These changes in presentation
have been applied retrospectively.

Restatement of prior periods and opening balances

The following tables disclose the adjustments that have been made
in accordance with the transitional provisions of the respective
HKFRSs to each of the line items in the consolidated profit and
loss account and balance sheet and the Company’s balance sheet
and other significant related disclosure items as previously reported
for the year ended 31 December 2004.
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(1) HEARBRENYE
BE-TTmE+-A=+—
AL FERAESE

BEHE Turnover

HERA Cost of sales

7 Gross profit

Ehlha Other revenue

HWAFE Other net income

HERDHER Selling and distribution
expenses

—REAHER General and administrative
expenses

eyl Profit from operations

BBRA Finance costs

TEE—FIRRIEHZE  Share of net results of a jointly

keRm controlled entity

EEBEENRIEEFE  Share of net results of associates

BHAET Profit before taxation
i Taxation
REERT Profit for the year
AR - Attributable to:
ARERRER Shareholders of the Company
SERRRER Minority interests
GRER Earnings per share
HA (BT Basic (HK$)
&5 (8k) Diluted (HK$)
HthEAREER - Other significant disclosure
items:
BIRA Staff costs
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General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

Restatement of prior periods and opening balances (continued)

(1)  Effect on the consolidated financial statements

Consolidated profit and loss account for the year ended 31

December 2004

FEHBRNRE (REETRNEND/ (BD))
Effect of new accounting policies
(increase/(decrease) in profit for the year)

—ETnE EREL] ErHERl  MEBRERR
(LHER) E15% E305% £yl —ETRE
2004 (as (MEE—7(E) WE-F0R) MWE-AT) It (E%)
previously HKAS 1 HKAS 32 HKFRS 2 Sub-total 2004
reported) (Note 1C(h)) (Note 1C(e)) (Note 1C(d)) (Restated)
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
47,078,103 - - - - 47,078,103
(39,317,104) - - - - (39,317,104)
7,760,999 - - - - 7,760,999
411,944 - - - - 411,944
491,285 - - - - 491,285
(4,443,639) - - - - (4,443,639)
(2,108,417) - - (88,322) (88,322)  (2,196,739)
2,112,172 - - (88,322) (88,322) 2,023,850
(295,464) - (34,874) - (34,874) (330,338)
741 - - - - 741
495,290 (133,342) - - (133,342) 361,948
2,312,739 (133,342) (34,874) (88,322)  (256,538) 2,056,201
(370,544) 133,342 - - 133,342 (237,202)
1,942,195 - (34,874) (88,322)  (123,196) 1,818,999
1,603,249 - (34,874) (88,322)  (123,196) 1,480,053
338,946 - - - - 338,946
1,942,195 - (34,874) (88,322)  (123,196) 1,818,999
076 - (0.02) (0.04) (0.06) 070
0.74 - - (0.04) (0.04) 0.70
(2,575,751) - - (88,322) (88,322)  (2,664,073)
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—RZEIE (@) 1. General (continued)
EEBUREE (5) C  Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)
(E) BIFTRIREI4Z80 (8 (i)  Restatement of prior periods and opening balances (continued)
(1) HEEUBRENTE@E (1) Effect on the consolidated financial statements (continued)
R-ZZEENF+=-—_A=+—H Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2004
FeBEABR
BHRROPL EEFEED/ ()
Effect of new accounting policies (increase/(decrease) in net assets)
CEEhE  ENEURE 0 EHEl EitER  EitER
(ME2H) 215 #3205 #385% #195 Nt CEEmE
2004 (as (WE-R(2)) (WRE-A(R) (&3))
previously ~HKAS-INT 21 HKAS32 ~ HKAS38  HKAS19  Sub-total 2004
reported) (Note 1C (b)) (Note 1C (e)) (Restated)
BETT  AETR AT AETn BETr BT AETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E 1Y Non-current assets
ErdE Fixed assets
-RENE - Investment properties 5,088,605 - - - - - 5,088,605
~HiphgE  BEREE - Other property, plant and
equipment 12,176,749 - - - - - 12,176,749
~HEEENEERY - Interests in leasehold land
TR held for own use under
operating leases 1,949,702 - - - - - 1,949,702
HE Goodwill - 1,781 - 2,317,435 - 2,319,216 2,319,216
AhErEE Other intangible assets 2,528,460 - - (2317435) - (2317435) 211,025
W-RERAHEEZES  Interest in a jointly controlled
entity 55,642 - - - - - 55,642
N AN A Interests in associates 1,541,257 - - - (10,840) (10,840) 1,530,417
TERE Avalable for sale investments 128,612 - - - - - 128,612
ARHE Prepayments 959,920 - - - - - 959,920
EEREEE Deferred taxation assets 167,192 - - - - - 167,192
24,596,139 1,781 - - (10,840) (9,059) 24,587,080
i - Current assets
I3 Stocks 5,069,792 - - - - - 5069792
BAREMENE Trade and other receivables 4,861,642 - 57411 - - 57411 4,919,053
TREHE Taxation recoverable 16,163 - - - - - 16,163
ReRBER Cash and bank balances 4,798,592 - - - - - 479859
14,746,189 - 541 - -S4 14803600
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General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)
(i)  Restatement of prior periods and opening balances (continued)
(1)  Effect on the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2004

(continued)

HEHHRNFE RFREAEN/ (BY)

Effect of new accounting policies (increase/(decrease) in profit for the year)

AEEABR®
AR Current liabilities
BARENERNTE Trade and other payables
BHER Short term loans
ERHE Taxation payable
HTBEERE Net current assets
BEERADAR Total assets less current
liabilities
ERBER Non-current liabilities
RE&fR Long term liabllties
ELHERE Deferred taxation liabilities
A Rkl Capital and reserves
B Share capital
HE Reserves
FAGRFE R Equity attributable to
shareholders of
the Company
PYRFER Minority interests
bR Total equity

#MAIZEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F3#

ZEEIME  EEARE EstERl EitER EstEnl
(MEE2H) EL #3235 385 195 gt ZEEmE
2004 (as (WEE-T(Z)) (WEE-A(%) (&5)
previously HKAS-INT 21 HKAS 32 HKAS 38 HKAS19  Sub-total 2004
reported) (Note 1C (b)) (Note 1C (e)) (Restated)
BT BETT BETT BT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(8,555,640) - - - - - (8,555,640)
(2,981,994 - - - - - (2,981,994)
(182,123) - - - - - (182,123)
(11,719,757) - - - - - (1,719.757)
3,026,432 - 57,411 - - 57411 3,083,843
27,622,571 1781 57411 - (10,840) 48352 27,670,923
(6,797,211) - - - - - (6,797.211)
(232139)  (705,092) - - - (705,092)  (937,231)
20,593,221 (703,311) 57411 - (10,840)  (656,740) 19,936,481
2,123,009 - - - - - 21300
13658559  (03311) 57411 - (10840)  (656,740) 13,001,819
15,781,568 (703,311) 57411 - (10,840)  (656,740) 15,124,828
4,811,653 - - - - - 4,811,653
20,593,221 (703311) 57411 - (10,840) (656,740) 19,936,481




—REH®)
B BR B (2)

(F) EFFTRIR A4 ()

()

1.
C

HARAAERERNOTE
R-FEME+-A=+—8

BEERER

E ik IS
-RENE
-HiE - BE
E
RHBRRzES

ik 13
BAREMENRER
ReRBITER

HEER
BAREMEMNTER
JERHE

RBAEFE

SEERRBAR

ERBAR
ETHBAR

BARfHH
e
Fifa

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Investment properties
Other property, plant and
equipment
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Taxation payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves
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General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)

Restatement of prior periods and opening balances (continued)

(2)  Effect on the Company’s balance sheet
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2004

FEHRRNH S (EEFEEN/ (BD)
Effect of new accounting policies
(increase/(decrease) in net assets)

“EEME  EriRAIRE SRR MEBREEA
(L#ER) H215 325k E2: —ETnE
2004 (as (ME—/A(T)) WE-A(R) MWE-AT) Ingt (E3))
previously HKAS-INT 21 HKAS 32 HKFRS 2 Sub-total 2004
reported) (Note 1C (b)) (Note 1C(e)) (Note 1C(d)) (Restated)
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
51,000 - - - - 51,000
6,445 - - - - 6,445
15,350,711 - - 81,175 81,175 15,431,886
15,408,156 - - 81,175 81,175 15,489,331
31,143 - 167,755 - 167,755 198,898
791,654 - - - - 791,654
822,797 - 167,755 - 167,755 990,552
(268,283) - - - - (268,283)
(7,758) - - - - (7,758)
(276,041) - - - - (276,041)
546,756 - 167,755 - 167,755 714,511
15,954,912 - 167,755 81,175 248930 16,203,842
(291) (7,957) - - (7,957) (8,248)
15,954,621 (7,957) 167,755 81,175 240,973 16,195,594
2,123,009 - - - - 2,123,009
13,831,612 (7,957) 167,755 81,175 240,973 14,072,585
15,954,621 (7,957) 167,755 81,175 240,973 16,195,594
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General (continued)

Accounting Standards and Interpretations that are not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new standards and

interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective. The

Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these

standards or interpretations will have no material impact on the financial

statements of the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKAS 21 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4
(Amendments)

HKFRS 6
HKFRS 7

HKFRS-INT 4
HKFRS-INT 5

HK(IFRIC)-INT 6

HK(IFRIC)-INT 7

Capital Disclosures'

Net investment in a foreign operation?

Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup
Transactions?

The Fair Value Option?
Financial Guarantee Contracts?

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources?

Financial Instruments: Disclosures'

Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease?

Rights to Interests Arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds?

Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market
— Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment?

Applying the restatement approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 December 2005.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006.
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

Principal Accounting Policies

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the financial
statements of the Company and of all its direct and indirect subsidiaries
and also incorporate the Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities
and associates on the basis set out in notes 2C and 2D below. The
results of subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates acquired
or disposed of during the year are included from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. All
material intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated on
consolidation.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the Company, directly or indirectly,
holds more than half of the issued share capital or controls more than
half of the voting power, or where the Company controls the composition
of its board of directors or equivalent governing body. In the Company’s
balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Jointly Controlled Entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture held as a long term investment
and a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity which is subject to joint control. The
results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly
controlled entities are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost
as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and of changes in equity of the jointly controlled entities,
less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of
a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly
controlled entity, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly
controlled entity. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in jointly
controlled entities are stated at the Group’s share of net assets of the
entities plus goodwill arising on acquisitions taking into effect the policy
on goodwill in note 19 below.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Associates

An associate is an enterprise, not being a subsidiary, over which the
Group is in a position to exercise significant influence through participation
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee. The results
and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the
associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate. In the consolidated balance
sheet, interests in associates are stated at the Group’s share of net assets
of the associates plus goodwill arising on acquisitions taking into effect
the policy on goodwill in note 20.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary/jointly
controlled entity/an associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested
for impairment at the reporting date and whenever there is an indication
that the cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates may be
impaired. Such goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. An impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account and is not reversed in a subsequent period. On
subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, a jointly controlled entity or an
associate, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group has applied HKFRS 3 — “Business Combinations” prospectively
from 1 January 2005. Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January
2001 continues to be recognised as a deduction from equity and should
not be recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account when the
Group disposes of all or part of the business to which that goodwill
relates or when a cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates
becomes impaired.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1
January 2001 and prior to 1 January 2005, the Group has discontinued
amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and such goodwill is tested
for impairment at the reporting date, and whenever there is an indication
that the cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates may be
impaired.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, a
jointly controlled entity or an associate represents the excess of the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary/jointly controlled entity/
an associate at the date of acquisition over the cost of acquisition.
Discount on acquisition of a subsidiary is recognised immediately in the
consolidated profit and loss account. A discount on acquisition arising
on an acquisition of a jointly controlled entity or an associate is included
as income in the determination of the Groups' share of results of the
jointly controlled entity or associate in the period in which the investment
is acquired.

As explained in Note 1C above, all negative goodwill as at 1 January
2005 has been derecognised with a corresponding adjustment to the
Group’s retained profits.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group’s financial assets are classified as “financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss”, “available-for-sale financial assets”, “loans
and receivables” and “held-to-maturity financial assets” dependent on
the purpose for which the assets are acquired. Financial liabilities are
classified as “financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss”
and financial liabilities other than financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (other financial liabilities). Details of classifications and

measurements are as follows:

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and have two sub-categories: financial assets
held for trading and those designated at fair value through profit
or loss on initial recognition. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in the profit and loss account in the period in
which they arise.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(b)

(c)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
At each balance sheet subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group's management has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognised
in the balance sheet at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are stated in the balance sheet at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the effective interest rate computed on initial recognition. If in
a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through the profit and loss account. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(d) Available for sale investments

(e)

(7)

Available for sale investments are non-derivative that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
category. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within twelve
months from the balance sheet date.

The Group holds certain investments in equity securities, that do
not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be measured reliably. These available for sale
investments are stated at cost less impairment. Apart from this,
available for sale investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
directly in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and
recognised in the profit and loss account.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses
will not reverse in subsequent periods. Any subsequent increase
in the fair value of such assets is recognised directly in equity.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in the
profit and loss account in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.

#MAI¥EMR 27 China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F#

107



108

BTSSR EMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

= FESFERK @
C S£HEEREE®

(=)

=gl A= {C))

AR ES

AHRRE SR B IR R B B R
RED D FIFIER - RERHERE - &
B IR AR LR EIR 2 15
NEBEAREE - BITTRRES
SRR ENOMEALEER
ERZERRRBBEABERLER
BARZBERBEE - P AR ERE
1 -

RUAREIRE - AIHERUE S Z B &R D
REERNERRBHERAINER - X
ARE DA R B B SR A R

EERSZHIETATREARL - WE
BB E R B BMDARTTRE - SIARR
BRERBIERSERERE R
Mo HmeEim NMERERERIE
& o WA R IR ERIE WA
ANABIA] -

B EE&EE

(&)

(z)

REY*

REMERC EKBETREIZEE
RGWAEE SHERNEERSE 2 L1
REFiEm - ZFWERAAEED
ANBERBER -

RIEE S ERIZE405% - AREEBER
AARBERAREREMEAR
ARBEEPGRHREHHRHERE
BmAHER - ARETESIBARA
/Fﬂ;kX WEEH - TTRF—H—
B s AestERIFE405% - FELt -

BHFW B EHFE

HELRE

REEE - BRSITBAZRHER R
EREZERDE - BFE KR A
A ERREHRERRE (0 &) JIEk -
RABHEMARESH B XEBH
BRERNZEERTAR ZIEB 2 H
ERERER -

2. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
F Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(f)

Other financial liabilities (continued)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds are classified separately into respective liability
and equity components on initial recognition. On initial recognition,
the fair value of the liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds of the issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the embedded call option for the holder to convert
the bonds into equity, is included in warrant reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component will remain in convertible bond
equity reserve until the embedded option is exercised. Where the
option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated
in the warrant reserve will be transferred to the retained profits.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit and loss upon conversion or
expiration. This accounting treatment is applied retrospectively.

G Fixed Assets

(a)

(b)

#MAIZEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F3#

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect
of which construction work has been completed and which are
held for long term rental and/or for capital appreciation. Such
properties are carried in the balance sheet at their fair value.

In accordance with HKAS 40, the Group has elected to use the fair
value model to account for its investment properties with the
changes in fair value recognised directly in the profit and loss
account in the period in which they arise. The Group has also
applied the relevant transitional provision and elected to apply
the HKAS 40 from 1 January 2005. As a result, no adjustment has
been made on comparative figures.

Construction in progress

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production, rent or administrative purposes or for purposes not
yet determined, are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes all construction expenditure,
professional fees, borrowing costs capitalised and other relevant
expenses directly attributable to such projects.
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Fixed Assets (continued)

(b)

(c)

Construction in progress (continued)

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time when construction work is complete and the costs
of construction are transferred to the appropriate category of fixed
assets when available for use.

Other property, plant and equipment

Fixed assets other than investment properties and construction in
progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided to write off the cost
of the assets over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight line
method. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed, adjusted
if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The estimated useful
lives are as follows:

- Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating
leases are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease term

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being 20 to 50 years

- Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years or over

the unexpired term of lease,

whichever is shorter

- Vessels 5to 15 years

- Cold storage facilities 10 years

- Plant and machinery 5 to 25 years

- Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years

- Motor vehicles 3 to 8 years

The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item of other

property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference

between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

and is recognised in the profit and loss account.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Fixed Assets (continued)
(d) Leased assets

(e)

(i)

(ii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases that transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incident to
ownership are classified as being held under finance leases
and are accounted for as if purchased whereby an amount
equivalent to cost is recorded as fixed assets and as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided in
accordance with the Group’s depreciation policy. Payments
to the lessor are treated as consisting of capital and interest
elements. The interest element is charged to the profit and
loss account.

Operating lease charges

All leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income or expense arising from operating leases (net
of any benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease) is recognised in the profit and
loss account on a straight line basis over the periods of the
respective leases except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the property is classified as an investment
property.

Impairment of fixed assets
At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources of

information are considered to assess whether there is any indication

that fixed assets other than investment properties are impaired. If

any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is

estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised

to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment

losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Fixed Assets (continued)

(e) Impairment of fixed assets (continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the assets is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount. Such reversal of impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the profit and loss account in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired separately and
from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value
respectively. After initial recognition, other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Other intangible assets with finite useful lives are
stated at cost and are amortised on the straight line method over their
useful lives with amortisation commences when the asset is available
for use. The estimated useful lives of other intangible assets with definite
useful lives are as follows:
Brand names 10 to 20 years
Development costs 5to 15 years
Patent Royalty 50 years
These intangible assets are assessed for impairment at each balance
sheet date by comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts. Where indication of impairment exists, an impairment loss is
charged to profit and loss to reduce the assets to its recoverable amount.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the assets is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount.
Such reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements,
with limited exceptions. Deferred taxation assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred
taxation is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

Stock of properties

Stock of properties represents properties held for sale which is stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to management estimates based on prevailing
market conditions.

Other stocks

Other stocks which comprise raw materials, consumables and packing
materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprise direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of production overheads.

Cost is determined on the weighted average method or in the case of
retail business, cost is calculated on the first-in first-out basis.

Net realisable value is determined as the estimated net selling price less
all further costs of production and the related costs of marketing, selling
and distribution.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value at each
balance sheet date and are deemed as held-for-trading financial assets/
liabilities, unless they are designated and qualified as effective hedging
instruments. The Group has entered into two types of hedge
relationships, including fair value hedges and cash flow hedges.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Derivative financial instruments and hedging (continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value hedges

Hedges are classified as fair value hedges when hedges are made
to hedge against exposure to changes in fair value of a recognised
asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment.

For fair value hedges that qualifying for hedge accounting, changes
in the fair values of hedging instruments and hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the profit and
loss in the periods in which fair value changes arise.

Cash flow hedges

Hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when hedges are made
to hedge against exposure to variability in cash flows that are
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction.

For cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting, the
effective portion of the gains or losses arising on the changes in
fair value of hedging instruments is initially recognised in equity
and transferred to the profit and loss account when the hedged
item affects the profit and loss account. The ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

For the hedge of a forecast transaction that subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability,
the associated gains or losses are removed from equity and included
in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the asset or liability.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives
that either do not qualify for hedge accounting or are classified as held-
for-trading financial assets/liabilities are taken directly to the profit and

loss account.

#MAI¥EMR 27 China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F#

113



14

B |1

on

BTSSR EMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

ETESFHEEE @

Y S RERR

Was HiRE WK ERREZ A EEE -
1B E— M EBAIE R RS m B RS FTE L
RIFRIE (FIBRHTH) ©

HEER N KRR HER ¢ RS UL
ARELRERERER

KB BB A YR SR O IR A R 1 e TE
H%% L/\EEE/\L\ °

EEEE

BERTREAEENR  URELAFEZ
BERMG - EERSRKE  ZRAEE
MR —BIRRIGE 2R T e Rl
BHERBRIHMEZBEEZRANBETER
ERZEEEZBNKA  EEBMEEXN
HERARAERERGRHERL °

REYREERERBERERE ST
ERAETER  KAERNEIRIREIHEK
AFIBR ©

5ME

ERYERSEER . MHERER - UZE
B2 EB AN AT M) 1T 2R
SRR AR ERR B RER (B
FABREEMAETIELERREZE) T
R MBHEER MINEREN 2 E¥IER
REEH 2EXEMRE - UHINEREBMIR
ARBEIKZIFEEHEAREEAAEE
ERZEXRSHIE o RREK AT ETIA
SMNE R B2 IR IAE BAEMMRE

#MAIZEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F3#

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Recognition of revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and services
provided in the normal course of business and net of discounts.

Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and provision of services;
and interest income is recognised in the profit and loss account as it
accrues.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis and charged to
the profit and loss account in the year incurred, except for costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of that assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan facilities and debt
securities are deferred, and are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Foreign exchange

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign exchange (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the profit and
loss account in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in equity in the consolidated financial
statements. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity
and transferred to the Group’s exchange reserve. Such exchange
differences are recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account in
the period which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising
on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005 are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the translation reserve.

Share-based payment

The Group has granted share options to certain employees and other
participants, for their services rendered, to subscribe for shares of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s share option scheme. The
fair value of services received is determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date because the fair value of
services of other participants cannot be reliably measured and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (employee share-based compensation reserve). The
Group has taken advantage of the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2
with the accounting policy applied retrospectively to those share options
granted after 7 November 2002 and had not been vested on 1 January
2005. Comparatives have been restated accordingly.

#MAI¥EMR 27 China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F#

115



116

BTSSR EMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

8 il

#MAIZEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F3#

EEW A
mANE

RANET A BESE R BT EEDET
mETE - TYERARREE HERRAT
- W AERRATREEIZBA -

EELHIER - TREBUANGEERZMR
RHSWANFEZEEEDERFRIE 2R
& o ZEHATHEERTSEERAE
BIETT 2 R BIFLLE -

st & A

AREERBEM T RAAHE 2 Gt EREIZFR
AEETRENR RETHEELRE
B B ERREMES 2 REES
Bz REEEE - AW E S IRIEE A
TEEAEIIRSELEMZ AR EER
HERAEE - HEFBEMTE PR

= o

EEHREEE
RZZEZERE+-_A=1+—8  AHEE
75,900,0007T)% F ok AT IE B 18 2 IR EF 1A
BECDEASECEERBRTER - @R
ELERBEEEEZRTABRREEHEE AR
PRI ER TG T E58 o WATEE 2 ER
R FERTEEA D - ARSI BB RERERIA
BELBITNEBZEERPER -

HHEEEEEERBUR

AEE EZBUEESARBBAR SRS
R BREERR  RBESER - X
RREkE¥ER  BEREBNERRERZ
FRR - R K RIA MG

Critical Accounting Estimates

Investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are determined annually by
independent valuer on market value for existing use basis calculated on
the net rental income and allowing for reversionary income potential.

In making the judgement, considerations have been given to assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the balance sheet
date and appropriate capitalisation rates of the net rental income. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data and transactions
entered into by the Group.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment,
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2E. Determining
whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated.
The recoverable amounts have been determined either based on value-
in-use calculations or the cash-generating units’ fair value less costs to
sell. Details of the calculation are disclosed in Note 16.

Deferred taxation assets

As at 31 December 2005, a deferred tax asset of HK$75.9 million in
relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in the Group’s balance
sheet. The recognition of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will
be available in the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in the profit and loss account
in which such a reversal takes places.

Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risk: credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies (continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, amount due from associates, bank balances and derivative
financial instruments entered into.

For trade and other receivables, the Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. Sales to retail customers are made in cash or via major credit
cards. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk; with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

In respect of transactions to use derivative financial instruments to
mitigate the Group’s market risk, the Group have procedures and policies
in place to limit the amount of credit exposure to any counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s ability to fund prospective investment opportunities and
existing debt requirements is achieved by maintaining surplus cash and
the availability of adequate committed funding lines from high quality
financial institutions.

Interest rate risk

To cover interest rate risk, the Group maintains the loan portfolio in a
preferred fixed/floating interest rate mix and review regularly. To avoid
undue concentration of risk, the Group entered into interest rate swaps
to mitigate current and future corporate profitability from interest rate
volatility.

Currency risk
Some subsidiaries of the Group are operating outside Hong Kong and
usually have their local currency as their functional currencies.

The Group also had foreign currency exposure arising from the
borrowings denominated in US dollars. Apart from forward foreign
exchange contracts as set out in Note 25 to meet these liabilities, the
Group do not have a foreign currency hedging policy. The management
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arises.
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For the year ended
31 December 2005
REVENUE
External sales
Inter-segment sales*

Qther revenue

Segment result

Unallocated corporate
£xpenses

Fair value gain on derivative

finanial instruments
Interest income

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Share of net results of jointly

controlled entities

Turnover and Segment Information

Share of net results of associates 31

Taxation

Profit for the year

—EEAE ZETNF
2005 2004
BEETR BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Turnover represents sales by
the Company and its subsidiaries
to outside customers and
comprises revenue from:
Sales of goods 51,753,972 45,199,464
Rendering of services and others 1,526,495 1,611,487
Rental income 295,922 260,842
Sales of properties 7,530 6,310
53,583,919 47,078,103
Primary reporting format - business segments
REMI R R
R EniEy
Food Petroleum N
Processing andRelated ~ K#E%
gE B& and 45 Y%  Products Investments Hi ait
Retail ~ Beverage Distribution Textile  Property Distribution and Others Elimination Total
BB BB BB BETT BB BB BB BB BB
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
16,111,467 6,845,984 5521749 4,291,206 273,755 20,539,758 - - 53583919
91,005 8,620 101,816 - 25,366 - - (226,807) -
16200472 6854604 5623565 4291206 299121 20539758 - (226807) 53583919
185515 130598 42988 81510 481436 46776 - - 968823
16,387,987 6985202 5,666,553 4,372,716 780,557 20,586,534 - (226,807) 54,552,742
347,745 534,722 502,563 175,390 795,706 809,826 (48,292) 3,117,660
(79,535)
47,91
169,336
3,255,372
(438,879)
- - - - - 4935 - - 4935
- 18,437 21 - (9,498) 344,345 - 353,736
(556,840 )
2,618,324
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As at 31 December 2005
ASSETS
Segment assets
Interests in jointly
controlled entities
Interests in associates
Deferred taxation assets
Taxation recoverable
Unallocated corporate
assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Taxation payable
Deferred taxation
liabilities
Unallocated corporate
liabilities

Consolidated total
liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
Capital expenditure
Depreciation and

amortisation
Impairment loss
recognised

BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

RENI R RAR
R ERTH

Food Petroleum %ER

Processing and Related EHEH
gE B& and 4% hg Products  Investments At
Retail Beverage  Distribution Textile Property  Distribution  and Others Total
BT BT BT BT BRI BT BT BT
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
10,466,423 9,981,801 3,729,428 4,462,089 6,164,621 6,250,334 291,424 41,346,120
- - - - - 896,487 - 896,487
4,105 - 213,684 72,870 - 18,670 761,223 1,070,552
140,018
22,030
1,985,755
45,460,962
5,177,445 3,988,882 1,007,915 1,760,776 378,064 3,800,356 3969 16,117,407
233,928
951,141
5,215,150
22,517,626
1,141,601 656,927 234,329 219,975 354,486 96,493 1,433 2,705,244
426,878 521,473 127,769 167,493 2,486 92,935 2,774 1,341,808
5,192 69,963 - - - - 48,000 123,155
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A EEERPEEHE® 5. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)

IZRHRRR-REBE S @) Primary reporting format - business segments (continued)

REMI Rl kiR
RiEs# ERiY
Food Petroleum %ER
Processing and Related ~ EtEH
gE B& and 45 Y%  Products Investments Lif ait
Retail ~ Beverage Distribution Textile ~ Property Distribution and Others Elimination Total

BT B¥Tn BETR BRTr BETm B8t ¥t B%Tr BT
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000

HE-REmE
tZR=t-HLEE
(E3)

Wi
HiMge
B30

Elbea

ARG

REARIDT
i
LN
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El N

Eii-RAREHER
ES T

EEBEDARE
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i

AERRA

For the year ended
31 December 2004
(Restated)

REVENUE
External sales
Inter-segment sales*

Qther revenue

Segment result

Unallocated corporate
expenses
Interest income

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Share of net results of a
jointly controlled entity

Share of net results of
associates

Taxation

Profit for the year

5070535 5,352,494
8,853 81,461

- 47,078,103
(172,09) -

5,079,388 543395

49,442 65,456

(172,49) 47,078,103

- 333918

5128830 5499411

(172,49) 47412,

417,594 473,135

- 42,609

#MAIZEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F3#

2,023,947

(78,123)
78,026

2,023,850
(330,338)

T4

361,948
(237,202)

1,818,999
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A EEEREEH® 5. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)

IZRBRRR-REBE D @) Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

REMI hiR1EH
RiGs# ERiY
Food Petroleum %ER
Processing and Related EHEH
and Products  Investments At
Distribution Distribution and Others Total
BT BT BT BT
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
RZBSME+-A=+-B  Asat31December 2004
(E3) (Restated)
g ASSETS
HBEE Segment assets 3,682,106 5,715,612 130,249 36,433,559
R—RAXEEHEE Interests in a jointly
LR controlled entity - 55,642 - 55,642
REERFZER Interests in associates 544737 27,561 854,723 1530417
ERHBEE Deferred taxation assets 167,192
REHE Taxation recoverable 16,163
AENBNLTEE Unallocated corporate assets 1,187,707
GREESHE Consolidated total assets 39,390,680
& LIABILITIES
HEER Segment liabilities 1,003,608 2,183,382 4514 13,200,083
A Taxation payable 182,123
ERHRaE Deferred taxation liabilities 937231
REHENLFEE Unallocated corporate
liabilities 5,134,762
FEBRAE Consolidated total
liabilities 19,454,199
R OTHER INFORMATION
BREY Capital expenditure 222,642 210,303 1,126 2,461,601
EREH Depreciation and
amortisation 134,239 91,353 3,531 1,271,508
AR ERE Impairment loss recognised - - - 18,571

* IS IR E R TTISERIE -

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates
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Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

hE At HER
BH Chinese Other &%
Hong Kong  Mainland  Countries Total
BT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
For the year ended
31 December 2005
Segment revenue
Turnover 20,961,230 29,832,535 2,790,154 53,583,919
Other revenue 645,451 314,724 8,648 968,823
21,606,681 30,147,259 2,798,802 54,552,742
As at 31 December 2005
Segment assets 13,154,134 26,298,719 1,893,267 41,346,120
Additions to fixed assets 130,174 2,467,198 107,872 2,705,244
For the year ended
31 December 2004
Segment revenue
Turnover 18,991,778 24,036,614 4,049,711 47,078,103
Other revenue 121,508 195,078 17,332 333,918
19,113,286 24,231,692 4,067,043 47,412,021
As at 31 December 2004
(Restated)
Segment assets 12,427,587 22,494,848 1,511,124 36,433,559
Additions to fixed/
intangible assets 343,203 2,075,665 42,733 2,461,601




—_
/N

.

H itz RN E R

Hio el M8 -
REFLHAE
REMBKE
FBHA
FERM B mE
REWERDAEEZ
EXCE
PTHEERIAZDR
BERH%

HiAFBRE TIIEE
HERE R BIFTSIR M FEE
HEBEEEMSENFE
HER EREMSRNFE

t - MEBRE

BEBOTE

ANhERTREE ZIRITER

B EAMERFE
TMERBFNBBEERZ

HEFHHME
A

B AEREERATAZ
BREEAFR
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Other Revenue and Net Income

Other revenue includes the following:

Dividends from unlisted available
for sale investments

Interest income

Negative goodwill recognised

Fair value gain on revaluation of
investment properties

Fair value gain on derivative
financial instruments

Other net income includes the following:
Net profit on disposal of associates
Net profit on disposal of fixed assets
Net gain on disposal of available

for sales investments

Finance Costs

Interest on finance leases

Interest on bank loans and other loans
wholly repayable within five years

Interest on other loans not wholly
repayable within five years

Financing charges

Less: Amount capitalised in cost of
qualifying assets

—EFFTRE —TEMF
2005 2004
BETT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
5,103 4,357
169,336 78,026
46,275 14,067
489,182 41,668
47,911 -
63,846 326,181
316,493 164,516
93,624 -
—EFFTRE ZTTMEF
2005 2004
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)

(Restated)

980 1,644
392,161 295,049
12,098 6,113
37,898 27,532
443,137 330,338
(4,258) -
438,879 330,338
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Profit For the Year

Profit for the year has been
arrived at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration
Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments)
Depreciation
— Owned assets
— Assets held under finance leases
(included in general and
administrative expenses)
Impairment loss recognised on fixed assets
Impairment loss recognised on available
for sale investments
Amortisation of intangible assets
— Goodwill (included in general and
administrative expenses)
— Other intangible assets
Operating leases charges on land
and buildings
Share of tax of jointly controlled
entities
Share of tax of associates

And after crediting:

Gross rental income
Less: Related out-goings

Net rental income

—EBRE —TEMF
2005 2004
BT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000
(E7)
(Restated)
19,940 13,570
3,114,376 2,664,073
1,308,930 1,136,610
4,023 5,040
74,065 18,571
49,090 -
- 116,424
28,855 13,434
1,098,178 976,815
236 -
67,528 133,342
295,922 260,842
(28,298) (27,680)
267,624 233,162
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2005

Name of director

Song Lin

Chen Shulin

Qiao Shibo

Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
Lau Pak Shing

Wang Qun

Kwong Man Him
Jiang Wei

Yan Biao

Xie Shengxi

Chan Po Fun, Peter
Houang Tai Ninh

Li Ka Cheung, Eric
Cheng Mo Chi

Ning Gao Ning, Frank
Zhong Yi

Total

2004

B RS

Notes to the Financial Statements

9. Directors’ Emoluments
—EBhE —REEE
2005 2004
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fees 968 960
Basic salaries and allowances 14,423 15,092
Provident fund contributions 1,124 1,276
Bonus paid 4,967 470
21,482 17,798
Benefit from share options exercised! 1,300 7,155
Share-based payment? - -

ok Hitiil&
Fees Other Emoluments
X

RiERY AESER —EEmE
Basic Provident &t
Salaries and Fund Sfifea: a5 2004
Allowances Contributions Bonus Paid® Total Total
BT BT BETT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
50 1,650 204 833 2,737 1,781
50 1,560 54 655 2,319 1,464
50 1,470 54 655 2,229 1,431
50 2,376 259 345 3,030 2,533
50 2,879 315 600 3,844 3,082
50 426 - 700 1,176 896
50 2,332 72 423 2,877 2,338
50 - - - 50 50
50 1,470 135 596 2,251 1,540
50 - - - 50 50
140 - - - 140 120
140 - - - 140 120
140 - - - 140 120
23 - - - 23 -
- - - - - 1,963
25 260 31 160 476 310
968 14,423 1,124 4,967 21,482 -
960 15,092 1,276 470 - 17,798
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1 FZHRBNEFABRZPMG -

I

2 ZHRBEEEFABRERTME -

I

3 A DNSEMFREZEEEE - BHIAL
THERBRFABETISAHTEE -

+. AfiREHES
FALUREHEREEEML (ZTZM
F:fDEE FEDHERLEXMEN -
Hp=f (CZTMF : Of) S5 EEM
EXNZMEFEmT

EARHr & N Ak
NEE R
ERFEAL
PARBAR FE U 3R

W= (C22WF - W) Re#HES ZH
BT EIEE

BT

1,500,001 - 2,000,000
2,500,001 - 3,000,000
3,000,001 - 3,500,000
4,000,001 - 4,500,000
4,500,001 - 5,000,000
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10.

Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

TR R RS
Benefit from

Name of director share options exercised'

—EThE —ZTTME

2005 2004

BETR BETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

Xie Shengxi 1,300 -

Lau Pak Shing - 1,890

Zhong Yi - 5,265

1,300 7,155

1 The amount was not charged to the consolidated profit and loss account.
2 The amount was charged to the consolidated profit and loss account.

3 The bonus payment is determined with reference to the operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics during both years.

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2004:
one) directors, details of whose remunerations are set out in note 9
above. The details of the remunerations paid to the other three (2004:
four) highest paid employees are as follows:

—E¥TRE —ZETMF

2005 2004

BT T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

(&%)

(Restated)

Basic salaries and allowances 6,465 10,262
Provident fund contributions 70 167
Bonus paid 2,910 -
Share-based payment 2,778 3,369
12,223 13,798

The emoluments of this three (2004: four) highest paid individuals were
within the following bands:

A

No. of persons
—BThRE —ETEF
2005 2004
27
HK$ (Restated)
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 - 1
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1 -
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 1 1
4,000,001 - 4,500,000 - 1
4,500,001 - 5,000,000 1 1
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Staff Provident Fund

Hong Kong

The Group operates various defined contribution retirement schemes
which are available to all Hong Kong employees. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The amount of contributions is based on a specified
percentage of the basic salary of employees and any forfeited
contributions in respect of unvested benefits of staff leavers are used to
reduce the Group’s contributions.

—EFRF —ZEEMMF
2005 2004
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Group contributions to staff

provident fund 32,344 37,504
Forfeited contributions utilised (666) (902)

Amount charged to consolidated
profit and loss account 31,678 36,602

Un-utilised forfeited contributions - -

Chinese Mainland

The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local government in the Chinese Mainland. The Group is required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
these schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated profit and loss account in

respect of the above-mentioned schemes in the Chinese Mainland
amounted to approximately HK$206,184,000 (2004: HK$169,372,000).
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12. Taxation

—E¥TRE —ETF
2005 2004
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)
(Restated)
Current taxation

Hong Kong 186,633 141,084
Chinese Mainland 251,321 187,143
Overseas 1,810 1,372
439,764 329,599

Deferred taxation
Hong Kong 72,587 (61,282)
Chinese Mainland 44,489 (31,115)
556,840 237,202

Previously, share of jointly controlled entities and associates’ taxation
were included under taxation. As a result of change in requirements of
HKAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, share of jointly controlled
entities and associates’ taxation for the year of HK$236,000 (2004:
HK$nil) and HK$67,528,000 (2004: HK$133,342,000) respectively are
included in the share of profits of jointly controlled entities and associates.
Prior comparatives have been restated accordingly.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2004: 17.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the year. Chinese Mainland income tax
has been provided for based on the estimated assessable profits in
accordance with the relevant tax laws applicable to the subsidiaries in
the Chinese Mainland. Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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Taxation (continued)

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits Tax

rate as follows:

Profit before taxation (excluding share
of net results of jointly controlled
entities and associates)

Calculated at a taxation rate of
17.5% (2004: 17.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates
in other jurisdictions

Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes

Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses

Tax loss not recognised

Overprovision on taxation in previous year

Income earning companies exempted
from taxation

Taxation charge

—ETLE —TEMF
2005 2004
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(E7))

(Restated)

2,816,493 1,693,512
492,886 296,364
68,940 6,921
(120,312) (147,412)
96,894 62,036
(25,456) (28,073)
141,050 120,232
(479) (3,424)
(96,683) (69,442)
556,840 237,202
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13.

Dividends

Additional final dividend paid for
the previous year as a result of
exercise of share options

2005 interim dividend paid of HK$0.13
(2004: HK$0.11) per ordinary share

2005 proposed final dividend of HK$0.25
(2004: HK$0.16) per ordinary share

= L ~TIMF
2005 2004
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
9,530 233
288,382 231,822
579,750 342,173
877,662 574,228

At the meeting held on 6 April 2006 the directors proposed final dividend
of HK$0.25 (2004: HK$0.16) per ordinary share. This proposed dividend,
which is calculated on the Company’s number of ordinary shares as at

the date of the board meeting, is not recognised as a liability in these

financial statements. The total dividends paid by the Company, including
the final dividend for the year 2004, amounting to HK$640,085,000
(2004: HK$526,297,000) are reflected in the current year financial

statements.
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14. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted
earnings per share is based on
the following data:

Earnings

Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the purpose of
calculating basic earnings per share

Interest saving on exercise of
convertible bonds

Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
— Share options
— Convertible bonds

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share

Notes to the Financial Statements

—BFLE —ZTTMEF
2005 2004
HBETT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(E51)

(Restated)

2,220,403 1,480,053
114,851 108,177
2,335,254 1,588,230
2005 2004

2,183,572,648 2,104,438,057

42,752,535 39,769,143
119,595,400 119,595,400

2,345,920,583 2,263,802,600
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The Group
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2004
(As restated)
Exchange difference
Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business
Additions
Disposals
Reclassifications
Adjustment on valuation

At 1 January 2005
(As restated)
Exchange difference
Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business
Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business
Additions
Disposals
Reclassifications
Adjustment on valuation

At 31 December 2005

15.

Fixed Assets

REER
HEERY
M i
HRERAS Interests in
EEEE leasehold
Plant, land held
BREF  machinery for own
Buildings  and other REWE  useunder
held for fixed It Investment  operating &3
own use assets Sub-total  properties leases Total
BB BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3,492,280 11,476,539 14,968,819 3,332,523 1,910,469 20,211,811
(2,143) (5,135) (7,278) 8 (834) (8,104)
712,588 1,107,715 1,820,303 185,771 283,383 2,289,457
675,744 1,452,041 2,127,785 216,235 117,185 2,461,205
(80,210) (500,788) (580,998) (24,978) (72,285) (678,261)
(194,780) (155,220) (350,000) 344,618 - (5,382)
- - - 1,034,428 - 1,034,428
4,603,479 13,375,152 17,978,631 5,088,605 2,237,918 25,305,154
95,179 268,960 364,139 8,117 26,890 399,146
136,014 153,002 289,016 - 53,347 342,363
(14,439) (35,530) (49,969) (418,000) (31,565) (499,534)
591,767 1,699,542 2,291,309 331,105 82,830 2,705,244
(109,665) (303,305) (412,970) (96,927) (78,562) (588,459)
253,680 (348,961) (95,281) (427) 95,106 (602)
- - - 489,182 - 489,182
5,556,015 14,808,860 20,364,875 5,401,655 2,385,964 28,152,494
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15.

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
At 1 January 2004 (As restated)
Exchange difference
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals
Impairment loss recognised
Reclassifications

At 1 January 2005 (As restated)

Exchange difference

Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business

Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

Impairment loss recognised

Redlassifications

At 31 December 2005

Net book values
At 31 December 2005

At 31 December 2004 (Restated)

Representing assets stated:
At cost

At 2005 professional valuation

Fixed Assets (continued)

BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

REER
HEERY
Ha T
HRERAS Interests in
BEEE leasehold
Plant, land held
BR#EF  machinery for own
Buildings  and other #EWE  useunder
held for fixed It Investment  operating gt
own use assets  Sub-total  properties leases Total
BB BB BB BB BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
813,853 4,327 481 5141334 - 250,003 5,391,337
(582) (2,054) (2,636) - (135) 2,771)
143,497 957,037 1,100,534 - 41,116 1,141,650
(36,651) (413,888) (450,539) - (2,768) (453,307)
2,351 16,220 18,571 - - 18,571
(5,483) 101 (5,382) - - (5,382)
916985 4,884,897 5,801,882 - 288216 6,090,098
4364 17512 141,93 - 3,461 145,397
(3430)  (25554)  (28.984) - (4,998)  (33982)
193,777 1063931 1257708 - 55,245 1,312,953
(@7072)  (232,422) (279,494 - (10882)  (290376)
37,538 36,527 74,065 - - 74,065
4,635 (4,824) (189) - (413) (602)
1,126,797 5,840,127 6,966,924 - 330,629 7,297,553
4,429,218 8,968,733 13,397,951 5,401,655 2,055,335 20,854,941
3,686,494 8,490,255 12,176,749 5,088,605 1,949,702 19,215,056
5,556,015 14,808,860 20,364,875 - 2,385,964 22,750,839
- - - 5,401,655 - 5,401,655
5,556,015 14,808,860 20,364,875 5,401,655 2,385,964 28,152,494
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The Company

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2004
Additions
Disposals
Adjustment on valuation

At 31 December 2004

At 1 January 2005
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2005

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
At 1 January 2004
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2004

At 1 January 2005
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2005

Net book values
At 31 December 2005

At 31 December 2004

Representing assets stated:

At cost

At 2005 professional
valuation

15. Fixed Assets (continued)

HipEE REmE

#F Other Nt Investment &%
Buildings assets Sub-total properties Total
BT BETT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,823 20,948 22,771 50,700 13,471

- 1,126 1,126 - 1,126
- (3,075) (3,075) - (3,075)

- - - 300 300

1,823 18,999 20,822 51,000 71,822
1,823 18,999 20,822 51,000 71,822

- 1,432 1,432 - 1,432
- (321) (321) - (321)

1,823 20,110 21,933 51,000 72,933
325 13,738 14,063 - 14,063

40 3,317 3,357 - 3,357
- (3,043) (3,043) - (3,043)

365 14,012 14,377 - 14,377
365 14,012 14,377 - 14,377

40 2,588 2,628 - 2,628
- (316) (316) - (316)

405 16,284 16,689 - 16,689
1,418 3,826 5,244 51,000 56,244
1,458 4,987 6,445 51,000 57,445
1,823 20,110 21,933 - 21,933

- - - 51,000 51,000

1,823 20,110 21,933 51,000 72,933

#MAIZEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F3#
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15.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS

Fixed Assets (continued)

—ET1E —ETMF
2005 2004
EETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Carrying amounts of the property
interests comprise:
The Group
Hong Kong
Properties held on long lease 3,675,613 3,769,564
Properties held on medium-term lease 2,260,229 2,112,103
Properties held on short lease 22,330 26,575
Chinese Mainland
Properties held on long lease 955,268 377,985
Properties held on medium-term lease 4,839,208 4,300,543
Properties held on short lease 71,225 74,976
Overseas
Properties held on medium-term lease 25,320 22,612
Properties held on short lease 37,015 40,443
11,886,208 10,724,801
The Company
Hong Kong
Properties held on medium-term lease 51,000 51,000
Chinese Mainland
Properties held on medium-term lease 1,418 1,458
52,418 52,458

The investment properties have been valued at 31 December 2005 by
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional valuers, on
market value basis.

The carrying amounts of fixed assets held under finance leases of the
Group at 31 December 2005 amounted to HK$7,507,000 (2004:
HK$14,654,000).

Fixed assets with carrying amounts of HK$227,855,000 (2004:
HK$799,300,000) are pledged for short term loans in the sum of
HK$237,843,000 (2004: HK$523,153,000) and long term loans in the
sum of HK$10,488,000 (2004: HK$72,191,000).

Other fixed assets mainly comprise vessels, leasehold improvements, cold
storage facilities, plant and machinery, furniture and equipment, motor
vehicles and construction in progress.
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16. Goodwiill

The Group
Cost
At 1 January 2004
Exchange difference
Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
Increase in equity interests in
subsidiaries

At 31 December 2004
Changes in the accounting policies

At 31 December 2004 (As restated)

Opening balance adjustment to
eliminate accumulated amortisation

Derecognition of negative goodwill

Opening balance as adjusted

Exchange difference

Acquisition of subsidiaries/business

Increase in equity interests in
subsidiaries

At 31 December 2005

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2004
Exchange difference
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2004

Opening balance adjustment to
eliminate accumulated amortisation

Derecognition of negative goodwill

At 31 December 2005

Carrying values
At 31 December 2005

At 31 December 2004
As restated

BAZEE BlE
Purchased Negative L
goodwill goodwill Total
BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,748,927 (236,039) 1,512,888
(23) - (23)
898,529 - 898,529
189,758 (13,027) 176,731
2,837,191 (249,066) 2,588,125
- 1,781 1,781
2,837,191 (247,285) 2,589,906
(307,463) - (307,463)
- 247,285 247,285
2,529,728 - 2,529,728
690 - 690
247,220 - 247,220
306,068 - 306,068
3,083,706 - 3,083,706
191,043 (22,706) 168,337
(4) - 4)
116,424 (14,067) 102,357
307,463 (36,773) 270,690
(307,463) - (307,463)
- 36,773 36,773
3,083,706 - 3,083,706
2,529,728 (210,512) 2,319,216
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16. Goodwill (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the cash generating
unit (“CGU") representing an operating entity within the business
segments identified by the Group for the purpose of segment reporting.
A segment level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below:

—EERF —ZEEMF

2005 2004

BT BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

(&B%)

(Restated)

Retail 1,113,807 634,620

Food Processing and Distribution 341,300 328,000

Beverage 1,505,135 1,482,672

Textile 68,217 (142,673)
Petroleum and Related Products

Distribution 55,247 16,597

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on a value
in use calculation. These calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period. Cash flows beyond the three-year period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rates and all cash flows are discounted at the
discount rates stated below.

Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations:

BHRERE

nEhst2

ERBRE

Nominal growth

rate beyond

{fi#E  theinitial cash
Discount rate flow projections

(%) (%)

Retail 8.6 4.9

Food Processing and Distribution 7.3 4.6

Beverage 7.5 6.9

Textile 7.9 6.0
Petroleum and Related Products

Distribution 9.3 6.0

The discount rates used is based on the respective CGUs’ weighted
average costs of capital which reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segments.
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Other Intangible Assets

The Group
Cost
At 1 January 2004
Exchange difference
Acquisition of subsidiaries/
business
Additions

At 1 January 2005

Exchange difference

Acquisition of subsidiaries/
business

At 31 December 2005

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
At 1 January 2004
Exchange difference
Charge for the year

At 1 January 2005
Exchange difference
Charge for the year

Impairment loss recognised

At 31 December 2005

Net book values
At 31 December 2005

At 31 December 2004

HhlE
[ ERE RERE

Brand Patent Development A
name Royalty Cost Total
BETT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
182,799 75,200 21,776 279,775
(299) (56) (16) (371)
20,603 - - 20,603
39 - - 396
203,499 75,144 21,760 300,403
4,714 1,736 503 6,953
41,941 - - 41,941
250,154 76,880 22,263 349,297
55,844 - 20,221 76,065
(102) (@) (15) (121)
11,331 1,757 346 13,434
67,073 1,753 20,552 89,378
1,740 59 490 2,289
26,115 1,519 1,221 28,855
2,178 - - 2,178
97,106 3,331 22,263 122,700
153,048 73,549 - 226,597
136,426 73,391 1,208 211,025
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TN\ M BAT 2 18. Interests in Subsidiaries
—ETEE ZETEF
2005 2004
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(E51)
(Restated)
AAT The Company
JE LMkt - BANE Unlisted shares, at cost 12,377,597 9,539,520
FEU KB A RIFIE - A EE Amounts due from subsidiaries,
at fair value 3,416,723 5,892,366
15,794,320 15,431,886
FEULH B A RIS IBN IR - R B REBAR The amount due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and not
EE AT ERAREE c DA EEUER repayable within the twelve months from the balance sheet date. The
REE25EZBENERBRZRENER fair value is based on cash flows discount using a rate based on the
IR - borrowings rate of 2.5% p.a.
RIEERF+_A=+—HZEEHBA Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2005 are set out
AIFHBETENE 1698 EF 1808 - on pages 169 to 180.
Th. REREHERZELS 19. Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities
—ETEE ZETEF
2005 2004
BT E¥EFIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
&R The Group
JEET Unlisted
E(hEEFE Share of net assets 896,487 55,642
R-ZEERF+_A=+—RHzZTEHRE Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entities at 31 December
FIEEFEHNE169HEEF 1808 ° 2005 are set out on pages 169 to 180.
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19. Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities (continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s jointly

controlled entities which are accounted for using the equity method of

accounting is set out below:

—ETRFE ZETPF
2005 2004
BT T IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Current assets 1,366,254 500,853
Non-current assets 1,371,905 -
Current liabilities (490,815) (79)
Non-current liabilities (680,978) -
Income 847,169 6,890
Expenses (810,958) (221)
20. Interests in Associates

—ETRFE ZETPF
2005 2004
BT T IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(&%)
(Restated)

The Group

Unlisted
Share of net liabilities (465,238) (329,334)
Amounts due from associates,

at fair value 1,535,790 1,859,751
1,070,552 1,530,417

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest bearing at

prevailing market rate and not repayable within the twelve months from

the balance sheet date.
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Interests in Associates (continued)
Particulars of the principal associates at 31 December 2005 are set out

on pages 169 to

180.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's associates

is set out below:

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net liabilities

Group's share of net liabilities

of associates

Revenue

Profit for the year

Group's share of net result of

associates for the year

=BTLE ~TIMF
2005 2004
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
32,209,766 31,792,258
(38,628,924) (38,331,647)
(6,419,158) (6,539,389)
(465,238) (329,334)
3,273,447 5,025,763
3,546,003 3,389,646
353,736 361,948
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21.

Available for Sale Investments

k- oo ¥ 8- 3 —ETME
2005 2004
EETT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
The Group
Non-current investments
Unlisted shares in Hong Kong, at cost 10,374 10,088
Unlisted shares in the Chinese Mainland,
at cost less impairment loss 46,453 116,921
Amounts due from investee
companies 1,002 1,603
57,829 128,612

The above investments mainly represent investments in unlisted equity

shares and are measured at costs less impairment at each balance sheet

date. As there is no active market for trading, their fair value cannot be

ascertained reliably.
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—t+ . EARIE 22. Prepayments
—ETEE ZTTNE
2005 2004
EETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
XEE The Group
Bt FEmREE — RN —HA—8 Tank storage service fees prepaid —
at 1 January 345,600 367,200
B RNERER 2 FIE Less: Amount recognised during
the year (21,600) (21,600)
324,000 345,600
e —HHREIERE Deposit payment for purchase of
ZEI®FIA a jointly controlled entity - 582,253
HekeniE Rental deposits 118,155 53,667
R+-A=+—Hz%&% Balance at 31 December 442,155 981,520
R —FNEN A 2 55 Portion to be utilised within one year 31,139 21,600
R —ERE A2 85 Portion to be utilised after one year 411,016 959,920
WTZA=+—Hz &% Balance at 31 December 442,155 981,520

RIBE R AR M ARER 2 —H
B A RIFTRISL 2 féom thek (R tiail)
ERER . FORR BIEE R IEZ B AAR
FAXMNZ BN RFEREE -

Pursuant to the tank storage agreements (the “Agreement”) entered
into with a holding company and a fellow subsidiary, the recognised
amount can be applied to set off portion of the total tank storage service
fees payable during the year under the Agreement.

—t+=.B58 23. Stocks

“TTRF keSS
2005 2004
BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$’000

X&EH The Group
FEME Properties held for sale 151,548 158,317
FEA Raw materials 936,820 794,029
SFEm R BEM R Consumables and packing materials 1,094,660 820,052
R Work-in-progress 276,208 274,598
SR SR Finished goods 4,013,747 3,022,796
6,472,983 5,069,792
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Trade and Other Receivables

F£HE XAF
The Group The Company
—%%1F _TImE CFTLE _TINF
2005 2004 2005 2004

BETT BETT BRI BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(Z31) (83

(Restated) (Restated)

Trade receivables 2,989,334 2,333,173 - -
Other receivables, deposits

and prepayments 2,451,724 2,520,751 44,666 8,575

Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 236,409 190,323

Amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries 18,036 42,974 - -
Amounts due from associates 27,546 22,155 - -

5,486,640 4,919,053 281,075 198,898

The Group normally trades with its customers under the following credit
terms:

(@) cash upon delivery; and
(b)  open credit within 60 days

The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables at the reporting
date:

—BTAF —ETEF
2005 2004
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

The Group
0 - 30 days 2,324,937 1,650,345
31 - 60 days 338,025 281,668
61— 90 days 164,073 141,480
> 90 days 162,299 259,680
2,989,334 2,333,173

The fair value of the Group’s trade and other receivables at balance
sheet date was approximate to the corresponding carrying amount.
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25. Derivative Financial Instruments

X&E e 3E]
The Group The Group
“EEnE  ZETIFE  _ZTNE  _TT@EAF
2005 2005 2004 2004
aE & BE BE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

BETT BETR BETTT BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Derivatives under hedge

accounting
Cash flow hedge:
Foreign currency forwards
contracts 408 - - -
Oil futures contracts 58,803 69,621 - -
59,211 69,621 - -

Other derivatives

Oil futures contracts 10,683 2,967 - -
Interest rate swaps - 12,465 - -
Total - current portion 69,894 85,053 - -

Note: In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKAS 39, the comparatives
as at 31 December 2004 was not adjusted to reflect the fair value of
derivatives held at that date.

Cash flow hedge - Foreign currency forward contracts

At 31 December 2005, the Group had foreign currency forward contracts
with notional amount of US$190,000,000 for hedging its foreign
currency exposure in respect of its US dollar liabilities. All of the forward
contracts have maturities of less than one year and were designated as
highly effective. Loss of HK$ 10,000 on remeasuring the forward contracts
was recognised in equity and is released to profit and loss in the same
period during which the US dollar liabilities are remeasured for changes
in foreign exchange rates upon maturity.
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25. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Cash flow hedge - Oil futures contracts

In 2005, some Group companies which engage in oil products trading
business had commodity futures contracts designated as effective
hedging instruments of managing price and timing risks in connection
with forecast purchases and sales.

As at 31 December 2005, fair value gain of HK$867,000 has been initially
recognised in hedge reserve and is expected to be transferred to the
profit and loss account at various dates in the coming six months after
the balance sheet date, the period in which forecast purchases and sales
are expected to occur.

At 31 December 2005, the Group had long and short oil futures
contracts with notional contract amounts of US$138,502,000 and
US$108,130,000 respectively and maturities of less than one year after
the balance sheet date.

Other derivatives — Oil futures contracts

At 31 December 2005, the Group had oil futures contracts to buy
200,000 metric tonnes and to sell 200,000 metric tonnes of oil product
at fixed prices to limit the risks arising from the fluctuations in oil prices.
The notional amounts of these buy and sell contracts were
US$57,805,000 and US$58,800,000, respectively, with maturities of one
month after the balance sheet date. As the aforesaid contracts did not
qualify for hedge accounting and as a result, gains or losses arising from
a change in fair value are recognised in profit and loss account.

Other derivatives — Interest rate swaps

The Group uses interest rate swaps to improve its risk profile by swapping
50% of its Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“HIBOR") based borrowing
from HIBOR to London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR").

At 31 December 2005, the Group had interest rate swaps with notional
contract amounts of HK$1,500,000,000 and mature over the next two
years matching the maturity of the related borrowings. During the year,
fair value gains of HK$47.9 million have been credited to the profit and
loss accounts.

The above derivatives are measured at fair value at each balance sheet
date. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and
commodity futures contract are either marked to market using listed
market prices or broker quotes. The fair value of Interest rate swaps is
estimated by referring to the prevailing market interest rate for similar
financial instruments quoted by financial institutions.
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26.

27.

Cash and Bank Balances
Included in cash and bank balances are the following amounts

denominated in a currencies other than the functional currencies of the

entities to which they relate.

US Dollar

F5E FaF
The Group The Company
—ETRE —TTMF ZFTFTRE —TTOF
2005 2004 2005 2004
EHTT A%t EETT  B%T
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
1,589,796 2,166,917 449,529 722,751

The effective interest rate on bank deposits ranged from 0.09% to 4.30%
(2004: 2.42%), with an average maturity of 30 days (2004: 30 days).

Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Provisions (note 28)

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries

Amounts due to associates

F5E K28

The Group The Company
“ETLE —ZTNE ZEFTHFE  —TINF
2005 2004 2005 2004
BETT BETT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5,857,597 4,295,279 - -
5,281,078 4,119,682 29,625 68,107
56,685 88,314 - -
- - 208,376 200,176
54,223 30,918 - -
18,502 21,447 - -
11,268,085 8,555,640 238,001 268,283
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27. Trade and Other Payables (continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet

date:

The Group
0 - 30 days
31 - 60 days

- 90 days
> 90 days

—BBRE  —TINE
2005 2004
BT AT
HK$000 HK$'000
3,935,603 2,866,278
947,494 776,429
540,083 274,979
434,417 377,593
5,857,597 4,295,279

The fair value of the Group’s trade and other payables at the balance

sheet date was approximate to the corresponding carrying amount.

Provisions

The Group
At 1 January 2004
Utilisation during the year

At 1 January 2005
Utilisation during the year

At 31 December 2005

BT T
HK$'000

110,410
(22,096)

88,314
(31,629)

56,685

The amounts represent provisions for restructuring activities for

operations acquired in previous years. These provisions were utilised in

accordance with the restructuring plans adopted when such operations

were acquired.
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29a. Short Term Loans

—ETEE —ETNE
2005 2004
EETR BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
The Group
Current portion
—secured bank loans 3,080 -
— unsecured bank loans 241,313 -

- of long term obligations
under finance leases 7,096 7,750
Short term bank loans,
trust receipts and overdrafts

— secured 237,843 602,160

— unsecured 2,545,247 2,372,084
Other unsecured loans 2,134,150 -
5,168,729 2,981,994

Other unsecured loans repayable within five years include
US$230,000,000 unsecured convertible bonds due 2006 issued by the
Group on 30 May 2001. The bonds are exchangeable for shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$15.00 per share during the period
from 11 July 2001 to 17 May 2006 inclusive. Unless previously redeemed,
converted or purchased and cancelled, the bonds will be redeemed at
121.78% of their principal amount on 31 May 2006. The bonds may be
redeemed in whole by the Group at any time on or after 1 June 2004 if
the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
for each dealing day during the period of 30 consecutive dealing days
has been at least 130% of the conversion price in effect on each such
dealing day or at least 90% in principal amount of the bonds has already
been converted or purchased and cancelled.

According to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and
Presentation, the convertible bonds were split between the liability and
equity elements on retrospective basis. The equity element is presented
in equity heading “warrant reserve”. The effective interest rate of the
liability components is 6.5%.
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29b.

#MAIZEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F3#

Short Term Loans (continued)
The movement of the liability component of the convertible loan notes
for the year is set out below:

—BThRE —ETEF
2005 2004
BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
The Group

Liability component at the
beginning of the year 2,059,157 1,973,654
Interest charge 82,764 79,824
Exchange difference (7,771) 5,679
Liability at the end of the year 2,134,150 2,059,157

The fair value of the liability component of the convertible loan notes
was determined based on the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows discounted at the prevailing market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible loan.

Long Term Liabilities

—B%IE —ZEIMEF
2005 2004
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
The Group
Secured bank loans repayable within 5 years 10,488 72,191
Unsecured bank loans repayable within 5 years 4,773,714 4,414,226
Unsecured bank loans not wholly repayable
within 5 years 5,697 -
Other unsecured loans repayable within 5 years 88,358 2,145,748
Obligations under finance leases repayable
within 5 years 10,539 14,036
Other unsecured loans not wholly repayable
within 5 years 173,383 158,760
5,062,179 6,804,961
Current portion included in current liabilities (251,489) (7,750)
4,810,690 6,797,211
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29b. Long Term Liabilities (continued)

k- < ok —ETNE
2005 2004
EETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
The Group
The non-current portion of long term
liabilities are repayable as follows:
Bank loans
After 1 year but within 2 years 43,588 230,270
After 2 years, but within 5 years 4,498,086 4,256,147
After 5 years 3,832 -
Other loans
After 1 year, but within 2 years 111,083 16,280
After 2 years, but within 5 years 85,441 2,201,582
After 5 years 65,217 86,646
Obligations under finance leases
After 1 year, but within 2 years 3,443 2,836
After 2 years, but within 5 years - 3,450
4,810,690 6,797,211

Under the terms of the agreements of the Group’s unsecured bank loans
repayable within five years, China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
(“CRH"), a holding company, is required to remain as a beneficial owner
of at least 35% of the voting shares of the Company or remain as a
single largest shareholder (whether directly or indirectly through its
subsidiaries) of the Company.

In addition to convertible bonds as set out in note 29a, the Group has
floating rate borrowings denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, US Dollars
and Renminbi with interest rates linked to HIBOR, LIBOR and the lending
rate stipulated by the People’s Bank of China respectively.

The effective interest rates on the Group’s floating rate borrowings range
from mainly 0.72% to 5.55% (2004: from 0.53% to 5.55%).

At 31 December 2005, the Group has a syndicated loan of HK$3,000
million (2004: HK$3,000 million) that bears interest rate at HIBOR plus
39 basis points and will mature in October 2007. Other borrowings are
repayable wholly or partly within 3 years from 31 December 2005.
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29b. Long Term Liabilities (continued)

30.

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of the entities to which they relate are set out
below:

E Hit

US Dollars Others

BB BB

HK$'000 HK$'000

As at 31 December 2005 3,833,339 16,185
As at 31 December 2004 3,578,604 22,813

Deferred Taxation

The movement in deferred taxation assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting
of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) recognised during the
year is as follows:

F5E The Group

BEREEE Deferred taxation assets

“—A—H At 1 January

TiraBeak (Charged)/credited to
(k) / ok consolidated profit and

loss account

e YNl Acquisition of subsidiaries

R Exchange rate adjustment

R+-A=1+-H At 31 December

RIER IR A B DAABRE R RIS 2 5 TE AT
RRFERBEFBIR B LR - ARIBERE
HEEmMER N _ETRAF+_A=1—
H - AEBRERZELEHBEER B
660,578,000 C (ZZEZMF : HEK
651,930,0007T) @ MAEBREREAS
&) 2 ZE RUIE BUR SR A JE AR AT 8 o
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B8 Hith a5

Tax losses Others Total
“ETHE —TINF CZETHE —TTNF ZFTRE —TTQEF
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
BETT AT BETx BT #ETn  A%Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
116,734 76,293 50,458 65,086 167,192 141,379
(43,071) 40,441 4,855 (14,628) (38,216) 25,813
(12) - 8,778 - 8,766 -
2,274 - 2 - 2,276 -
75,925 116,734 64,093 50,458 140,018 167,192

Deferred taxation assets are recognised for tax losses carry forwards to
the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 2005, the Group has
unrecognised tax losses of HK$660,578,000 (2004: HK$651,930,000)
arising from tax losses which is uncertain as to whether it can be utilised
to set off against future taxable income.
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30. Deferred Taxation (continued)
The Components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet and the movements during the year as as follows:

EfRENE  MERERE
Revaluation Accelerated

of investment tax &t
property  depreciation Total
BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
The Group
At 1 January 2004
As previously reported - 298,414 298,414
Changes in accounting policies 531,359 - 531,359
At 1 January 2004
As retated 531,359 298,414 829,773
Charge to equity 173,733 - 173,733
Credited to consolidated
profit and loss account - (66,584) (66,584)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 309 309
At 31 December 2004
As retated 705,092 232,139 937,231
Charged to consolidated
profit and loss account 85,698 (6,838) 78,860
Relating to disposal of a subsidiary (65,123) - (65,123)
Exchange difference - 173 173
At 31 December 2005 725,667 225,474 951,141

The Company’s deferred taxation liabilities relates to the accelerated tax
depreciation of its investment property, land and building and other
assets.
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31. Share Capital

Authorised
Ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

Issued and fully paid
At 1 January
Exercise of share options
Allotment of shares

At 31 December

—EELF “TTQRE
2005 2004

& E [ i8R [EED
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
Shares value shares Value
Tz BRI i BETT
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
2,123,009 2,123,009 2,089,728 2,089,728
52,448 52,448 33,281 33,281
57,972 57,972 - -
2,233,429 2,233,429 2,123,009 2,123,009

(@  On acquisition by the Company of the following interests:

Resources Wan Jia Group;

- a related sharedholders’ loan of RMB35 million; and

Supermarket Co., Ltd."),

35% equity interest in China Resources Vanguard Group and China

the 11.5% equity interests in BREBHM AR AAF (“Suguo

the consideration was satisfied by the issue of 57,971,905 new ordinary

shares of the Company at an issue price of HK$11.39 per share on

completion. This is a non-cash transaction.
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31.

(b)

Share Capital (continued)

The Company operates a share options scheme for the purpose of
promoting additional commitment and dedication to the objectives of
the Company by the participants (the “New scheme”). In addition, certain
outstanding share options were still held under a share option scheme
which subsisted until 31 January 2002 and was terminated on 31 January
2002 (the "Old Scheme”).

The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general meeting
on 31 January 2002 and shall expire on 31 January 2012. The board of
directors of the Company may grant options to eligible participants
including executive or non-executive directors of the Group, any
discretionary object of a discretionary trust established by any employee,
executive or non-executive directors of the Group, any executives and
employees of consultants, professional and other advisors to the Group,
chief executive, substantial shareholder of the Company, associated
companies of the Group, associates of director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, and employees of substantial
shareholder.

Share options are generally either fully vested and exercisable within a
period of 10 years immediately after the date of grant or are vested over
a period of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of
a grant.
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Et+—BExw®@ 31. Share Capital (continued)
RIEMIE BRI BIREE B 152 Details of the movements of the share options granted under both share
g option schemes are summarised as follow:
BRENE
Number of share options
TEE R-FFRF REEE REEE REEE RAEE R-FELE
ERT —R—H Rt fTiE" i %% +=RA=+-8H
Exercise AT Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed AT
RHAH Price  Outstanding at during during during during Outstanding at
Date of grant HKS$ 1/1/2005 the year the year’ the year the year 31/12/2005
Eital
Old Scheme
20/06/2000 7.190 11,861,000 - 3,916,000 - - 7,945,000
21/11/2000 7.080 4,153,000 - 754,000 - - 3,399,000
16,014,000 - 4,670,000 - - 11,344,000
ikt 8l
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7.170 19,638,000 - 5,124,000 - - 14,514,000
05/03/2002 7.350 19,624,000 - 7,816,000 - 322,000 11,486,000
08/03/2002 7.500 980,000 - 200,000 - - 780,000
19/04/2002 7.400 7,204,000 - 3,554,000 - - 3,650,000
23/05/2002 8.900 136,000 - 92,000 - - 44,000
02/08/2002 8.320 5,870,000 - 1,936,000 - 100,000 3,834,000
07/11/2002 7.700 1,790,000 - 38,000 - - 1,752,000
24/01/2003 7.250 1,182,000 - 576,000 - 28,000 578,000
14/04/2003 6.290 7,428,000 - 3,162,000 - 50,000 4,216,000
01/08/2003 7.100 1,070,000 - 410,000 - - 660,000
08/10/2003 8.900 2,888,000 - 945,000 - 282,000 1,661,000
02/12/2003 9.000 1,360,000 - 290,000 - - 1,070,000
14/01/2004 9.720 46,441,000 - 6,520,000 - 958,000 38,963,000
20/04/2004 9.890 5,600,000 - 384,000 - - 5,216,000
25/05/2004 9.150 35,856,000 - 11,251,000 - 162,000 24,443,000
02/06/2004 9.550 5,022,000 - - - - 5,022,000
22/07/2004 9.800 3,100,000 - 1,510,000 - - 1,590,000
04/10/2004 10.350 49,680,000 - 3,900,000 - 316,000 45,464,000
17/01/2005 11.400 - 1,750,000 70,000 - 100,000 1,580,000
22/07/2005 12.500 - 960,000 - - - 960,000
214,869,000 2,710,000 47,778,000 - 2,318,000 167,483,000
230,883,000 2,710,000 52,448,000 - 2,318,000 178,827,000
AIRERITR
Exercisable at the
end of the year 137,027,000
IEFTHEE
Weighted average
exercise price 9.04 11.79 8.51 - 8.93 9.23
BRESEASNOT - Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:
Eital
0Old Scheme
EZ Directors 10,486,000 - 4,500,000 - - 5,986,000
€8 Employees 5,528,000 - 170,000 - - 5,358,000
HatEl
New Scheme
EZ Directors 24,466,000 - 200,000 - - 24,266,000
B8 Employees 169,829,000 2,710,000 39,090,000 - 1,996,000 131,453,000
H {0281 Other participants 20,574,000 - 8,488,000 - 322,000 11,764,000
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{TEE

BT

Exercise

REBEH Price
Date of grant HK$
HE ]
Old Scheme
20/06/2000 7.190
21/11/2000 7.080
it
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7.170
05/03/2002 7.350
08/03/2002 7.500
19/04/2002 7.400
23/05/2002 8.900
02/08/2002 8.320
07/11/2002 7.700
24/01/2003 7.250
14/04/2003 6.290
01/08/2003 7.100
08/10/2003 8.900
02/12/2003 9.000
14/01/2004 9.720
20/04/2004 9.890
25/05/2004 9.150
02/06/2004 9.550
22/07/2004 9.800
04/10/2004 10.350
ARFLITR

Exercisable at the
end of the year

IEFHTEE
Weighted average
exercise price

EREBERTERNBEE

gatal

Old Scheme
EE Directors
&8 Employees

Fatal
New Scheme
EZ Directors
EB Employees
E 25 Other participants
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31. Share Capital (continued)

EREREZ
AR EE?
Estimated
fair value of
the share
option
granted?

s E
Number of share options
R-BEMmE REEE REEE REEE REEE R-FTOE
—A—H R e 2 X% +=RA=+-H
ERITHE Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed R ITHE
Outstanding at during during during during Outstanding at
1/1/2004 the year the year' the year the year 31/12/2004
14,787,000 - 2,826,000 - 100,000 11,861,000
5,343,000 - 640,000 - 550,000 4,153,000
20,130,000 - 3,466,000 - 650,000 16,014,000
24,250,000 - 4,142,000 - 470,000 19,638,000
24,078,000 - 4,444,000 - 10,000 19,624,000
980,000 - - - - 980,000
11,500,000 - 3,412,000 - 884,000 7,204,000
330,000 - 194,000 - - 136,000
13,368,000 - 5,050,000 - 2,448,000 5,870,000
1,932,000 - 142,000 - - 1,790,000
1,620,000 - 438,000 - - 1,182,000
9,634,000 - 1,806,000 - 400,000 7,428,000
1,896,000 - 826,000 - - 1,070,000
5,000,000 - 1,010,000 - 1,102,000 2,888,000
1,500,000 - 140,000 - - 1,360,000
- 49,308,000 1,809,000 - 1,058,000 46,441,000
- 5,600,000 - - - 5,600,000
- 42,384,000 6,392,000 - 136,000 35,856,000
- 5,022,000 - - - 5,022,000
- 3,100,000 - - - 3,100,000
- 49,690,000 10,000 - - 49,680,000
96,088,000 155,104,000 29,815,000 - 6,508,000 214,869,000
116,218,000 155,104,000 33,281,000 - 7,158,000 230,883,000
171,779,000
7.42 9.77 8.03 - 8.22 9.04
FEAT Details of the share options held by the directors included in the above table
are as follows:
11,986,000 - 1,500,000 - - 10,486,000
8,144,000 - 1,966,000 - 650,000 5,528,000
11,706,000 13,260,000 500,000 - - 24,466,000
59,654,000 141,544,000 24,871,000 - 6,498,000 169,829,000
24,728,000 300,000 4,444,000 - 10,000 20,574,000

#MAI¥EMR 27 China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F#

157



158

BTSSR EMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

=t— X

Mt -

1. FADITEERENTE B2 N
EHEREAEBE12.24T (ZEZM
£ E#10.757T) ©

2. CDRBREZAAEEERTEITES
2R ETF AR (EE

WEAAEBBEBDER=ZBENE T
(Trinomial Lattice) A =NEHE o AT~ ANA
hERZER

TR (R ER)

AR (E

TaE R R

B HAIR
R 2 | 2

BERT BB M E =

TBEHRIETRAARRRERNBE—F2Z
KIRETE - BEEAMAZEASRER
BERER TSRS  TTERBIRIT
REEZZEFN ZREMT TURE -

REEREE-_ZTTRF+-_A=+—8H
I FERAR B TR AR R A S H
#¥53,183,000 L (ZETMF : B
88,323,0007T) °

==

F&EHE
AREFBEYFBHNETHE8HK
RAEBREREER

() —RFERBRERZED L8
o B A3 2 P B R ) R B R )
ZEERBREE  AERHEERE

31.

32.
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Share Capital (continued)

Note:

1. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options
exercised during the year was HK$12.24 (2004: HK$10.75).

2. The fair value of the share option granted represents the weighted average

of the fair value of the share options with different exercisable period.

These fair values were calculated using the Trinomial Lattice model. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

—EThAE —ETNE
2005

BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000

Exercise price (as set out in the

above table)

Weighted average share price HK$11.95 HK$9.78
Expected volatility 24.3% 38.7%
Option life 10 years 10 years
Risk-free rate 4.1% 4.1%
Expected dividend yield 2.7% 2.7%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company’s share price over the previous 1 year. The expected life
used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised the total expenses of HK$53,183,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2005 (2004: HK$88,323,000) in relation to
the share options granted by the Company.

Reserves

The Group

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 87 to 88.

(@) General reserve is part of shareholders’ fund and comprises
statutory surplus reserve, statutory public welfare fund and
discretionary surplus reserve of subsidiaries and associates in the
Chinese Mainland.
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WZZERFT-A=1—H

The Company

At 1 January 2004
As previously reported
Changes in accounting policies

As restated
Premium on shares issued
Share issue expenses
Surplus on revaluation
Employee share option benefits
Profit for the year
Dividends (Note 13)

At 1 January 2005
Changes in accounting policies

As restated
Premium on shares issued
Share issue expenses
Employee share option benefits
Profit for the year
Dividends (Note 13)

At 31 December 2005

AARAEIRFRRZBEBAE
#3,362,172,000 (ST MFE : B

3,130,523,0007T) ©
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Reserves (continued)

The Group (continued)

(b) The retained profits of the Group include approximately
HK$100,433,000 (2004: HK$323,667,000) and approximately
HK$6,844,000 (2004: HK$1,908,000) retained by associates and
jointly controlled entities of the Group, respectively.

EERH
MEE HiEnE
fi%  Employee Rl

Rir it (E Property  share-based ke REEH
Share  valuation compensation Warrant Retained gt
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total

BBTR BBTR BETR BBTR BETT BETT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

10,406,273 4517 - - 1,312993 11,764,437
- - 3,664 167,755 (8,345) 163,074
10,406,273 4517 3,604 167,755 1,304,648 11,927,511
230,838 - - - - 230,838
(261) - - - - (261)

- 300 - - - 300

- - 88,322 - - 88,322

- - - - 2,352,172 2,352,172
- - - - (526,297) (526,297)
10,636,850 45,41 91,986 167,755 3,130,523 14,072,585
- (45,471) - - 45,41 -
10,636,850 - 91,986 167,755 3,175994 14,072,585
986,656 - - - - 986,656
(494) - - - - (494)

- - 53,183 - - 53,183

- - - - 826,263 826,263
- - - - (640,085) (640,085)
11,623,012 - 145,169 167,755 3,362,172 15,298,108

Reserves of the Company available for distribution to shareholders
amounted to HK$3,362,172,000 (2004: HK$3,130,523,000).
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Share of net results of jointly
controlled entities

Share of net results of associates

Profit on disposal of subsidiaries/business

Profit on disposal of associates

Profit on disposal of available for
sale investments

Fair value gains on derivative
financial instruments

Dividend income from unlisted available
for sale investment

Interest income

Interest expenses

Net profit on disposal of fixed assets

Impairment loss recognised on fixed assets

Impairment loss recognised on
available for sale investments

Impairment loss recognised on
other intangible assets

Depreciation and amortisation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of goodwill

Negative goodwill on acquisition
recognised as income

Tank storage service fee utilised

Fair value gain on revaluation of
investment properties

Share based payment charged
against equity

Operating profit before working capital
changes

Changes in properties held for sale

Changes in other stocks

Changes in trade and other receivables

Changes in derivative financial instruments

Changes in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

“EBTLE “TETNF
2005 2004
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
3,175,164 2,056,201
(4,935) (741)
(353,736) (361,948)
(138,010) -
(63,846) (326,181)
(93,624) -
(47,911) -
(5,103) (4,357)
(169,336) (78,026)
400,981 302,806
(178,483) (129,225)
74,065 18,571
49,090 -
2,178 -
1,312,953 1,141,650
28,855 13,434

- 116,424
(46,275) (14,067)
21,600 21,600
(489,182) (41,668)
53,183 88,322
3,527,628 2,802,795
6,769 7,318
(1,322,534) (505,317)
(571,010) (97,459)
(7,779) -
2,256,354 866,012
3,889,428 3,073,349
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33. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)
B Disposal of subsidiaries/business

—EFFRE —TEMF
2005 2004
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Net assets disposed of:
Fixed assets 465,552 -
Trade and other receivables 6,973 -
Cash and bank balances 15,108 -
Trade and other payables (6,186) -
Deferred taxation liabilities (65,123) -
Minority interests (32,624) -
383,700 -
Reserves released (474) -
Profit on disposal of business/underlying
fixed assets 138,010 -
521,236 -
Satisfied by:
Cash consideration 512,396 -
Deferred consideration 8,840 -
521,236 -
Analysis of the net inflow of
cash and cash equivalents
in respect of disposal of subsidiaries
Cash considerations received 512,396 -
Cash and bank balances disposed of (15,108) -
497,288 -
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Acquisition of subsidiaries/business

The carrying amounts and fair value
of the net assets acquired:
Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Available for sale investments
Stocks
Trade and other receivables
Deferred taxation assets
Cash and bank balances
Trade and other payables
Taxation payable
Short term loans
Long term loans
Deferred taxation liabilities
Minority interests
Negative goodwill on acquisition
Goodwill on acquisition

Discharged by:
Cash
Balance of consideration payable
Prepayment

Analysis of net cash outflow of
cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the acquisition
of subsidiaries/business
Cash consideration
Cash and bank balances acquired

33. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

—®®EE  _—FTENE
2005 2004
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
342,363 2,289,457
41,941 20,603

- 1,854

87,893 267,970
28,854 297,905
8,766 -
82,235 148,855
(256,589) (618,797)
(6,990) (771)
(2,970) (1,470,858)
- (22,410)
- (309)
(2,182) (219,805)
(46,275) -
247,220 898,529
524,266 1,592,223
430,730 1,355,215
93,536 124,208
- 112,800
524,266 1,592,223
(430,730) (1,355,215)
82,235 148,855
(348,495) (1,206,360)
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34. Capital Commitments

X&E A48
The Group The Company
—EERE _—TINF C-FFEE _TINF
2005 2004 2005 2004

BETT  BETR  ERTR NI
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

Capital commitments outstanding
at the balance sheet date are
as follows:
Contracted for but not
provided for purchase and
construction of fixed assets 374,066 474 504 - -

Authorised but not
contracted for purchase and
construction of fixed assets 866,448 534,006 - -

1,240,514 1,008,510 - -

35. Operating Lease Commitments
(@) The Group as lessee

X&E A48
The Group The Company
—EERE _—TINF C-FFEE _TINF
2005 2004 2005 2004

BETT  BETR  EETR  AETRx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

At the balance sheet date, the total
future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:
- Within one year 790,796 730,948 - -
- In the second to fifth year
inclusive
2,317,652 1,877,416 - -
- After five years 4,642,751 4,049,792 - -

7,751,199 6,658,156 - -

kil Operating lease payment represents rental payable by the Group for
—&= certain of its retail outlets and properties. Leases are negotiated for lease

terms principally ranged from 1 to 30 years.
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=+HEEXHORE® 35. Operating Lease Commitments (continued)
(2) AEFELSHBAA (b) The Group as lessor
X&E AAF
The Group The Company
—EERE _—TINF C-FFEE _TINF
2005 2004 2005 2004

ERTT AT EETR BET
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

REER  RIET T At the balance sheet date, the total
BEBOTRMT future minimum lease payments
HREKE , RIEHE under non-cancellable operating
HOREE leases are receivable as follows:
REME Investment properties
~-E—EFR - Within one year 390,951 316,292 - -
e - In the second to fifth year
EREN (B inclusive
BEMF) 563,110 300,267 - -
B2k - After five years 279,283 51,022 - -
1,233,304 667,581 - -
EYE BT FHEAERANTT1EI0 These properties have committed tenants for an average term from 1 to
Fo 10 years.
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=+R.BEHEARIE 36. Obligations Under Finance Leases
RIEEERE REHERERE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
“¥%iF _TTIF ZTTRF _TIMH
2005 2004 2005 2004

Bhtn BBt EBTRT BT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

REER  ~EERE At the balance sheet date, the Group's
RARNBERNZ amounts payable under finance
FEET : leases are as follows:
TE—FR Within one year 7,693 8,729 7,096 7,750
EEF_FEZERFRA In the second to fifth year
(REBEME) inclusive 3,924 7,366 3,443 6,286
nEZR After five years - - - -
11,617 16,095 10,539 14,036
A BERIBER Less: future finance charges (1,078) (2,059)
REREZRE Present value of lease obligations 10,539 14,036
W ERTZEAR Less: Amount due for settlement
BEZFE within 12 months (7,096) (7,750)
ERT_EREERZFE Amount due for settlement
after 12 months 3,443 6,286
AEBBETEETEENGEAE A The Group leases certain of its fixed assets under finance leases. The
A EHHEHERE -HE_TTRHE average lease term is five years. For the year ended 31 December 2005,
+-B=+—HILEE  EsREHERE the average effective borrowing rate was approximately 11% p.a. (2004:
FELE11% (CBEME : 11%) o FJE 11% p.a.). Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases are on
TTREHE BT - IARSERAETE a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into
BEAR s BVWERSARTASIIEI (T for contingent rental payments.
(OEZz 3
MEMENEEZ N BEEELETDMER The fair value of the obligations under finance leases approximates their
=, carrying amount.
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37.

38.

Contingent Liabilities

X&E A48
The Group The Company
“TERE —TINF CZTTRE —TTQNF
2005 2004 2005 2004
BETT AT EETR A%t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
At the balance sheet date, there were
contingent liabilities in respect of
guarantees for banks and other
loans provided to
- subsidiaries - - 7,054,321 6,856,869
- an associate 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000
500,000 500,000 7,554,321 7,356,869

Material Related Party Transactions

On 24 November 2005 ¥TTH# E 2 (RYI)) BBRAF] (Xin Jiang Cheng
Enterprise (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a contract with ZEZEFR A7) (China
Resources Construction Corp.), an approximately 100% owned subsidiary
of RAEIZEE 482 5] (China Resources National Corporation, the ultimate
holding company of the Company), engaging it as the main contractor
for the construction, renovation, addition and alteration works on a six-
storey multi-function commercial building situated at No. 196, Jian She
Lu, Jiangmen City, Guangdong Province owned by Xin Jiang Cheng
Enterprise (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. for a consideration of RMB199,800,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$191,400,000). 90% of the contract
sum will be payable monthly according to the amount of works
performed and certified by the quantity surveyor. The remaining 10%
will be retained as retention money which will be released after
completion of the construction.
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38.

BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related
parties of the Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and are
not disclosed in this note. In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered

into the following material related party transactions.

Purchase of goods from associates

Receiving of services from
A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries
Associates

Sales of goods to
A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries
Associates

Rendering of services to
fellow subsidiaries

Operating lease payment
A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries
Associates

Tank storage service fees
A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries

Management fee received for
provision of certain services at
oil depot

A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries

Transaction under godown management
agreement and facilities
management agreement
Receipt of service fee from
A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries

Payment of monthly fee to
a holding company

—TELE —ZETMEF
2005 2004
EETR BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
407,710 -
878 855
127,878 17,640
24,695 -
418 151
17,984 30,595
112,987 -
1,688 1,613
372 -
47,038 37,814
1,595 -
139,800 139,800
1,800 1,800
1,200 1,200
18,792 18,792
131,076 144,700
79,463 79,290
33,000 30,000
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Material Related Party Transactions (continued)
(continued)
The Group had the following material related party balances:

—BTAF —TTmE
2005 2004
BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000

Amount due from:
Fellow subsidiaries 18,036 42,974
Associates 27,546 22,155

Amount due to:

Fellow subsidiaries 54,223 30,918
Associates 18,502 21,447

Transactions/balances with other stated-controlled entities in Chinese
Mainland.

The Group itself is a part of a larger group of companies under CRNC
which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the transactions
with CRNC group and the associates of the Group, it also conducts
businesses with entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the
PRC government in the ordinary course of business. The Directors are of
the opinion that those entities other than the CRNC group do not have
the power to govern or participate in the financial and operating policies
of the Group. The transactions including sales and purchases of goods
and services, with these entities are conducted at arm’s length and have
been reflected in the financial statements. The Group believes that it
has provided, at the best of its knowledge, adequate and appropriate
disclosure of related party transactions as summarised above.

Compensation of key management personnel.

Remuneration paid for key management personnel include solely the
directors of the Company as determined with reference to remuneration
committee, is disclosed in note 9.

Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements set out on pages 81 to 180 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 6 April 2006.
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